
      

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETINGPLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING
July 2,  2024July 2,  2024

6:30 P.M.6:30 P.M.

 
      
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - ROLL CALL   

 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

 

a. Approval of Minutes - Planning & Zoning Commission, June 4, 2024Approval of Minutes - Planning & Zoning Commission, June 4, 2024
 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - There is no limit to the number of speakers, although public comments
will be held to an overall time limit of 30 minutes. Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per
person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to another commenter.

  

 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS   

 

a. Resolution No. 5, Series 2024Resolution No. 5, Series 2024
 Resolution No. 5, Series 2024 - Application for a site plan for a 560 sq. ft. addition to the existing

dental/orthodontist office located on property at 101 S. Maple St., Cortez CO (the "Property").
 

 

Presenter: Presenter: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner
 

b. 1880 Industrial Road, Site Plan Review1880 Industrial Road, Site Plan Review:  As of the agenda posting deadline, this application
remains incomplete and has been removed from the agenda.
Presenter: Presenter: No presentation will be given.

 

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS   

 

6. NEW BUSINESS   

 

7. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS   

 

a. Building Permits issued in June, 2024.Building Permits issued in June, 2024.
 Planning and Zoning Commission will review.
 

Presenter: Presenter: No presentation will be given.
 

8. ADJOURNMENT   

 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
July 02, 2024 Agenda Item: 2. a.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Planning and Zoning Commission
 

FROM:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Approval of Minutes - Planning & Zoning Commission, June 4, 2024Approval of Minutes - Planning & Zoning Commission, June 4, 2024
 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
June 4, 2024 minutes













CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
July 02, 2024 Agenda Item: 4. a.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Planning and Zoning Commission
 

FROM:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Resolution No. 5, Series 2024Resolution No. 5, Series 2024
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
Scott and Joyce Arter (the "Applicants"), are currently under contract to purchase the Property (located at 101 S.
Maple St.) and are proposing a site plan to construct an addition to the existing structure. The proposal will add
560 sq. ft. to the existing building.  The lot is .29 acres (12,500 sq. ft.) and it currently houses Cortez Dental Care
and Schafer Orthodontics with associated parking and other improvements. The Property is zoned Commercial
Highway (C).

ISSU ESISSU ES
The Planning Commission in its consideration shall use the standards set forth in Chapter 5 of this code and shall
include paving and layout of streets, alleys and sidewalks, means of ingress and egress, provisions for drainage,
parking spaces, areas designated for landscaping, and other aspects deemed by the planning commission necessary
to consider in the interest of promoting the public health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity and general
welfare.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Staff recommends approval of the application for the site development plan through P&Z Resolution No. 5,
Series 2024, with 2 conditions.

A suggested motion could be: I make a motion that the Planning and Zoning Commission approveA suggested motion could be: I make a motion that the Planning and Zoning Commission approve
P&Z Resolution No. 5, Series 2024, a resolution approving the site development plan for anP&Z Resolution No. 5, Series 2024, a resolution approving the site development plan for an
addition to the existing building on property located at 101 S. Maple St., Cortez, Colorado, in theaddition to the existing building on property located at 101 S. Maple St., Cortez, Colorado, in the
Highway Commercial (C) zone, with the following conditions:Highway Commercial (C) zone, with the following conditions:

1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, CDOT and affected districts must be satisfied, as
outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents. Specifically, all public improvements shall
comply with the minimum requirements of the 2009 City of Cortez Construction Design Standards and
Specifications.

2. The appropriate construction drawings and reports for the project, revised as required by the City Engineer
shall be signed and stamped by a Colorado licensed architect or engineer, must be approved by the Building
Official and City Engineer, and a building permit obtained prior to any construction on the Property.

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Staff Report
Resolution No. 5, Series 2024
Site plan and marked entrance
Documentation





City of Cortez Community & Economic Development Dept.
123 Roger Smith Avenue
Cortez, CO 81321

Meeting Date: July 2, 2024
Project No. PL- LU24-0007

MEMO

TO: Members of the Cortez Planning and Zoning Commission

FROM: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner

SUBJECT: Public Hearing on an Application for a site plan for a 560 sq. ft. addition to the existing
dental/orthodontist office located on property at 101 S. Maple St., Cortez CO (the
“Property”), zoned Commercial Highway (C).

APPLICANT: Scott & Joyce Arter
OWNER: Alan & Pamela Schafer Family Trust
ATTACHMENTS: P&Z Resolution No. 5, Series 2024

Plan Set, application

BACKGROUND
Scott and Joyce Arter (the “Applicants”), are currently under contract to purchase the Property (located
at 101 S. Maple St.) and are proposing a site plan to construct an addition to the existing structure. The
proposal will add 560 sq. ft. to the existing building.  The lot is .29 acres (12,500 sq. ft.) and currently
houses Cortez Dental Care and Schafer Orthodontics with associated parking and other improvements.
The Property is zoned  Commercial Highway (C).

The Property is located in a commercial area just south of Main St., directly east of the Middle School.  Properties
to the north, south and west are zoned Commercial Highway, while properties directly east are zoned
Neighborhood Business.



Project Location





Existing

Proposed



DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

Development Standard C Zone Requirement Proposed
Min. lot area (sq. ft.) 6,000 12,500
Min. front yard (ft.) 10’ 10’ existing
Min. side yard (ft) 7’ 10’ existing
Min. rear yard (ft) 7’ 10’  existing
Max. lot coverage n/a n/a
Min. floor area n/a n/a
Max height (ft) 35’ 15’
Parking 11 spaces 11 spaces existing
Landscaping 10% or 1,250 sq. ft. 3,574 sq. ft. landscaped

28%

ISSUES

The purpose of the site plan review is to ensure compliance with all regulations and to protect the public
health, safety and welfare, to promote balanced growth, to ensure adequate provision of public services
and facilities and to guide the character of the city. Section 6-14.12 (f) of the Land Use Code (“LUC”)
states:

The Planning Commission in its consideration shall use the standards set forth in Chapter 5 of this code
and shall include paving and layout of streets, alleys and sidewalks, means of ingress and egress,
provisions for drainage, parking spaces, areas designated for landscaping, and other aspects deemed by
the planning commission necessary to consider in the interest of promoting the public health, safety,
order, convenience, prosperity and general welfare.

DISCUSSION

The project as submitted appears to meet all development standards.
 
LUC 6.14(e)(9) states that it is at the sole discretion of the zoning administrator whether a site plan on
a parcel less than ½ acre in size shall be referred from the Planning Commission to the City Council.
Given the minor nature of this addition, the Zoning Administrator (the Community and Economic
Development Director) determined that the Planning Commission should be the decision authority for
this project.

Comments below and suggested conditions will ensure adequate access, drainage, and all other aspects
to promote the public health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity, and general welfare.



AGENCY REVIEW

Empire Electric (Greg South)
I talked to Jay Cruzan about Empire having two secondary UG powerlines on far west side of existing
 building.  He assured me that the new addition will not be built over them. With that being said I have
signed off on the Cities review form.  Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.

Cortez Sanitation District (Jim Webb)
The Sanitation District has no issues with this proposal

ALTERNATIVES

1. The Commission can recommend that the City Council approve the application for the site
development plan for the proposed addition on property located at 101 S. Maple St., Cortez
Colorado, in the Highway Commercial (C) zone; or

2. The Commission can recommend that the City Council deny the application for the site
development plan and state its reasons; or

3. The Commission can ask for more information and continue the application to a date certain;
or

4. The Commission can approve the application for the site development plan, and state any
conditions it feels would be necessary to ensure compliance with the Land Use Code; or

5. The Commission can deny the application for the site development plan and state its reasons.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Alternative “4” above, approval of the application for the site development plan
through P&Z Resolution No. 5, Series 2024, with 2 conditions.

If the Planning and Zoning Commission so chooses to follow the recommendation of Staff, a possible
motion the Commission could make is as follows:

I make a motion that the Planning and Zoning Commission approve P&Z Resolution No. 5, Series
2024, a resolution approving the site development plan for an addition to the existing building on
property located at 101 S. Maple St., Cortez, Colorado, in the Highway Commercial (C) zone,
with the following conditions:

1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, CDOT and affected districts must be
satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents. Specifically, all
public improvements shall comply with the minimum requirements of the 2009 City of Cortez
Construction Design Standards and Specifications.

2. The appropriate construction drawings and reports for the project, revised as required by the
City Engineer shall be signed and stamped by a Colorado licensed architect or engineer, must
be approved by the Building Official and City Engineer, and a building permit obtained prior to
any construction on the Property.



CITY OF CORTEZ
RESOLUTION NO. 5, SERIES 2024

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE DEVELOMENT PLAN FOR AN ADDITION
TO AN EXISTING COMMERCIAL BUILDING LOCATED AT 101 S MAPLE ST,

CORTEZ, COLORADO IN THE COMMERCIAL HIGHWAY (C) ZONING DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the applicant, Scott and Joyce Arter (the “Applicant”) has applied for review
of a site development plan for an addition to the existing building located on property at 101 S.
Maple St., Cortez, Colorado (the “Property”) and more particularly described as:

Lot 1, 2, 3 and 4, Block 41 TOWN OF CORTEZ AND CHAMBERLIN’S ADDITION TO
THE TOWN OF CORTEZ, according to the plat thereof filed for record August 20, 1890 in Book
3, Page 36.

WHEREAS, Land Use Code Section 6.14, Site Plans, indicates that the owner or developer
of a property may request an application of these site plan requirements for development on
property located in the COMMERCIAL Highway (C) Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, Land Use Code Section 6.14(e)(9) states that it is at the sole discretion of the
of the Zoning Administrator whether a site plan on a property less than ½ acre in size shall be
referred to the City Council; and

WHEREAS, The Zoning Administrator has determined that a site plan does not need to be
referred to the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission received evidence and testimony,
reviewed the site plan for an addition to the existing building on the Property at its July 2, 2024
meeting, and is recommending approval of the site plan with conditions, as evidenced in the
adoption of P&Z Resolution No. 5, Series 2024; and

WHEREAS, it appears that all requirements of Chapters 5.00 and 6.00 of the City’s Land
Use Code for development of the Property have been or can be met.

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CORTEZ PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION:

THAT, this Resolution No. 5, Series 2024, establishes conditions of approval for the site
plan on the Property; and

THAT, the site plan, and full application for the Property are hereby approved, subject to
the following conditions to ensure compliance with the standards in the Cortez Land Use Code for
a site development plan:



1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, CDOT and affected districts
must be satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents.
Specifically, all public improvements shall comply with the minimum requirements of
the 2009 City of Cortez Construction Design Standards and Specifications.

2. The appropriate construction drawings and reports for the project, revised as required by
the City Engineer shall be signed and stamped by a Colorado licensed architect or
engineer, must be approved by the Building Official and City Engineer, and a building
permit obtained prior to any construction on the Property.

AND THAT, the Applicant is to coordinate with City staff to ensure that these conditions
are fully met.

MOVED, SECONDED, AND ADOPTED THIS 2ND DAY OF JULY, 2024

         

___________________________________
Robert Rime, Chairman

ATTEST:

________________________________
Cheryl Lindquist, Deputy City Clerk

















































CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
July 02, 2024 Agenda Item: 4. b.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Planning and Zoning Commission
 

FROM:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

1880 Industrial Road, Site Plan Review1880 Industrial Road, Site Plan Review:  As of the agenda posting deadline, this application
remains incomplete and has been removed from the agenda.
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
Continued from June 4, 2024 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Upon receiving completed application from owners, item will be rescheduled.



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
July 02, 2024 Agenda Item: 7. a.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Planning and Zoning Commission
 

FROM:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Building Permits issued in June, 2024.Building Permits issued in June, 2024.
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
None

ISSU ESISSU ES
None

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Planning and Zoning Commission will review.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
June permits



Permit Type Sub Type Permit# Address Issue Date
Building Accessory Structure B24-000096 311 North HENRY 06/26/2024
Building Total Accessory Structure Total 1
Building Commercial Remodel B24-000019 508 East MAIN Street 06/04/2024
Building Commercial Remodel B24-000033 1 East MAIN Street 05/31/2024
Building Commercial Remodel B24-000064 140 West 1st Street 05/30/2024
Building Total Commercial Remodel Total 3
Building New Residential B24-000085 434 Jarrett Avenue 06/12/2024
Building Total New Residential Total 1
Building Other B24-000086 517 South Beech Street 06/10/2024
Building Other B24-000087 1300 East MAIN Street 06/04/2024
Building Other B24-000090 601 North MILDRED Road 06/06/2024
Building Other B24-000091 1546 Golf Course Lane 06/07/2024
Building Other B24-000092 1103 BARRETT Street 06/24/2024
Building Total Other Total 5
Building Total 10
Burn Permit Disposal BRN24-000064 2305 La Plata Street 06/10/2024
Burn Permit Disposal BRN24-000065 1317 Cottonwood Street 06/12/2024
Burn Permit Disposal BRN24-000063 904 Alma Avenue 06/07/2024
Burn Permit Total Disposal Total 3
Burn Permit Recreational Fire BRN24-000062 18 West Andrew Lane 06/07/2024
Burn Permit Total Recreational Fire Total 1
Burn Permit Total 4
Land Use Home Occupant Permit LU24-000004 413 North Linden Street 05/30/2024
Land Use Total Home Occupant Permit Total 1
Land Use Total 1
Plumbing Commercial P24-000020 50 North Broadway 06/12/2024
Plumbing Commercial P24-000018 44 East MAIN Street 06/26/2024
Plumbing Commercial P24-000019 140 North Market 05/30/2024
Plumbing Total Commercial Total 3
Plumbing Total 3
Right of Way Public Right-of-Way ROW24-000043 901 Alma Avenue 06/13/2024
Right of Way Public Right-of-Way ROW24-000044 830 East 3RD Street 06/13/2024
Right of Way Public Right-of-Way ROW24-000045 Various 06/17/2024
Right of Way Public Right-of-Way ROW24-000046 60 Cactus Street 06/17/2024
Right of Way Public Right-of-Way ROW24-000047 620 West 7TH Street 06/18/2024
Right of Way Public Right-of-Way ROW24-000042 Adams St., Montezuma Ave., Fillmore St., P 06/11/2024
Right of Way Public Right-of-Way ROW24-000036 434 Jarrett Avenue 06/12/2024
Right of Way Public Right-of-Way ROW24-000041 2418 FAIRWAY Drive 06/10/2024
Right of Way Public Right-of-Way ROW24-000038 621 West 3RD Street 06/10/2024
Right of Way Public Right-of-Way ROW24-000040 245 East Montezuma Avenue 06/10/2024
Right of Way Total Public Right-of-Way Total 10
Right of Way Total 10
Water Tap 3/4 inch WT24-000014 318 East 2nd Street 06/10/2024
Water Tap 3/4 inch WT24-000013 901 Alma Avenue 06/11/2024
Water Tap 3/4 inch WT24-000012 434 Jarrett Avenue 06/12/2024
Water Tap Total 3/4 inch Total 3
Water Tap Total 3
All Permits Total 31


	Agenda
	AI 1175 Approval of Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes, June 4, 2024
	       ATT_June 4, 2024 minutes
	AI 1161 Resolution No. 5, Series 2024, Arter Family Dental Care
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Resolution No. 5, Series 2024
	       ATT_Site plan and marked entrance
	Site plan
	CHERYL 6 27
	CHERYL 6 27 II

	       ATT_Documentation
	101
	PAGE 1 COVER
	PAGE 2
	PAGE 3
	PAGE 4

	AI 1177 1880 Industrial Road, Site Plan review
	AI 1178 Building Permits issued in June, 2024
	       ATT_June permits

